
 Item 5 

 

AT  A  MEETING 
 of the  
REGENERATION SCRUTINY AND 
PERFORMANCE PANEL held at The 
Council House, Walsall on 
Thursday 13 July 2006 at 6.00pm 

 
 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor I. Shires  (Chair) 
Councillor M. Pitt  (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Anson 
Councillor Arif 
Councillor Clarke 
Councillor Coughlan 
Councillor Hughes 
Councillor Robinson 
Councillor Yasin 
 
Officers in Attendance 
 
Dr. Peter Cromar  (Chief Executive – Walsall 

Regeneration Company) 
Steve Lewis  (Head of Environmental 

Regeneration) 
Stuart Bentley (Scrutiny Officer) 
 

 
1/06. APOLOGIES 
 
There were no apologies for this meeting.  
 
2/06. SUBSTITUITIONS 
 
There were no substitutions for this meeting.  
 
3/06. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND PARTY WHIP 
 
The members of the political groups represented on the panel indicated there were 
no whipping arrangements for any of the political parties in respect of items on the 
agenda. There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4/06. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
Resolved 
 



 

  2 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2006, copies having previously been 
circulated, be approved as a true and accurate record subject to minor typological 
amendments. 
 
(annexed) 
 
Councillor Hughes asked if it was common practice for the panel to invite the portfolio 
holders. 
 
Councillor Shires replied that they were always welcome, but they had been 
specifically invited to the last panel meeting; hence the minute expressing 
disappointment at their non-attendance. 
 
5/06 ITEMS REQUESTED FOR INFORMATION 
 
Councillor Shires invited Dr. Cromar to present a “Prospectus for Growth.” 
 
(annexed) 
 
During the presentation, Councillor Pitt asked if Dr. Cromar could expand slightly on 
the housing issues. 
 
Dr. Cromar replied that there were several housing streams around the canal area 
and city living. The idea was to produce a vibrant living environment and there was a 
clear role to work with accord and WHG (Walsall Housing Group) amongst others. 
 
Councillor Anson expressed his concerns over the level of family housing in the 
borough. 
 
On a separate point, Councillor Pitt asked if the increased rental costs for office 
space, resulting from upgrading of the facilities, would be a disincentive for business 
growth. 
 
Councillor Hughes replied that the benefits of fit for purpose office facilities, where 
people would actually choose to work, would out way any negative impact of 
increased rents. 
 
Council Anson then asked if there were any plans to clear the canal system to allow 
safe access to the canal basin for water traffic. 
 
Dr. Cromar replied that this would need to be a partnership between the developers 
and English Waterways. 
 
Steve Lewis added that this remained a strategic priority for the regeneration of the 
canal basin area. 
 
Councillor Pitt then asked what progress was being made on the lottery application 
for the Black Country ‘Gateway’. 
 



 

  3 

Dr. Cromar replied that a bid was with the lottery fund and a decision on second 
round short-listing was due by the middle of August 2006. 
 
Councillor Pitt then asked what the first of the waterfront development would contain. 
 
Dr. Cromar replied that it would be mixed usage. 
 
Councillor Clarke stated that he taken part in an excellent meeting to discuss the 
future of Bradford Place and that progress would continue to be driven forward. 
However, he expressed his concerns over the integration of the transport 
infrastructure. 
 
Councillor Arif then asked what was happening to Bridge and Lower Rushal Streets. 
 
Dr. Cromar replied that heritage monies were being sought for the redevelopment of 
Bridge and Ablewell Streets. 
 
Steve Lewis added that an initiative was due to start in September with £1.5 million 
being invested in the area. The emphasis would be on building upon the evening 
economy. 
 
Councillor Coughlan asked how the detrimental effect of the new road scheme works 
on local business could be minimised. 
 
Steve Lewis replied that the works were a necessary evil but it was a matter of 
communication with owners to minimise the effect. 
 
Councillor Shires asked what the timescale for the development was. 
 
Dr. Cromar replied that it should be no more than 9 months. 
 
Councillor Shires replied that he realised that there would be significant disruption but 
that there needs to be a system to allow flexibility in approach in order to minimise 
the impact. 
 
Steve Lewis agreed that communication was the key. 
 
Councillor Shires thanked Dr. Cromar for his presentation and asked members to 
bear the information in mind for the later discussion on the panel’s work programme 
for the year. 
 
Steve Lewis then gave feedback on the LABGI investment plan from cabinet. He 
stated that cabinet had taken note of scrutiny’s input and, as a result, increased the 
contribution to recycling. 
 
Councillor Robinson stated that he was disappointed that cabinet had ignored 
scrutiny again. This was the third time these issues had been raised. 
 
Councillor Pitt replied that recommendations were always welcome but the decision 
had been made in light of other priorities. 



 

  4 

 
Councillor Walker added that there was 2 years left on the funding stream and it was 
felt the windfall money could be best used to pilot other schemes while other monies 
were sought to fund the ongoing costs of brown bins. 
 
Councillor Coughlan agreed with the principle of investigating new schemes but he 
felt there was a need to imbed and he highlighted the need for a neighbourhood 
management model. 
 
Councillor Robinson then stated that panel had put forward a cost neutral budget to 
allow cabinet to address these issues and they had initially come up from the LNPs. 
The panel had now found the money twice and he asked how many times cabinet 
would ignore the views of the public. 
 
Councillor Shires suggested that the panel should highlight the recycling issues to the 
LNPs so that they could also bring pressure to bear on cabinet. 
 
Councillor Pitt stated that there are limited funds and that there was a possible 
opportunity to look at commercial tipping facilities in the borough as a revenue 
stream. 
 
Councillor Shires stated that the panel would benefit from periodic reviews of spend 
against the agreed LABGI investment plan. 
 
Resolved: 
 

• That the panel receive regular updates of spend against the LABGI framework 
and monitors its performance. 

 
6/06 KEY DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
Steve Lewis gave a brief overview of the regeneration directorate, the work of the 
panel in 2005/6 and possible work streams for 2006/7. 
 
(annexed) 
 
Councillor Shires stated that he was aware that the directorate were keen that the 
panel input into the continuing improvement to the markets and he felt that a working 
group was needed to look at this issue. 
 
Councillor Anson agreed and felt that the issue of car parks was also important. 
 
Councillor Shires felt that the previous year’s work on car parking had been side 
tracked as it was meant to be more about strategic transportation issues around 
parking, which was now back on the agenda. He stated that he was interested in how 
to get people out of cars and onto public transport. He added that it could be a vast 
subject but he felt that the panel needed to take a strategic overview approach to the 
issue, especially looking at how to identify and improve corridors to work. He felt that 
good quality public transport was needed with recognition that cars were part of the 
transport network. He further highlighted the sprint project currently operating in 



 

  5 

Coventry and stated that, although the midlands metro had been on the cards since 
the 1980s, it was unlikely that any progress would be made in the short term. He 
therefore recommended that strategic transportation should form the second work 
stream for the panel. 
 
Councillor Coughlan raised the issue of regeneration. He stated that all authorities 
aspired to be better than their neighbours were, but were chasing the same monies. 
He asked if evaluations of previous government regeneration grants, such as SRB 
and NDC, were available to assess their impact and value for money. 
 
Councillor Shires suggested that these could be presented to the panel at the next 
meeting. 
 
Steve Lewis replied that this would be possible as all the schemes have both pre and 
post evaluations completed. 
 
Councillor Arif stated that it would be useful to see the car parking strategy as it was 
important to have car parks in the right place. However, he liked the idea of members 
inputting into planning policy and suggested that the panel form a group to look at 
this in detail. 
 
Councillor Coughlan stated that there was limited funding coming into the borough 
and he felt that there was a need to look at the district centres as part as a strategic 
overview. He suggested that transportation links to neighbouring authorities might be 
worth investigating. 
 
Councillor Shires suggested that the panel should receive further information on the 
planning issues and the framework is new. 
 
Steve Lewis suggested that the panel might benefit from a report on the new 
strategic regeneration framework, which would include the 10 projects for the district 
centres. 
 
Councillor Shires suggested that there might be some benefit to informing the LNPs. 
 
Steve Lewis replied that some work had already begun on this, as the LNPs would be 
playing a key role in delivering these projects. 
 
Councillor Shires stated that the panel should receive a presentation on the new 
planning framework and the statement of community involvement. 
 
Councillor Pitt stated that he was keen not to have all the money spent in the town 
centre so that some could be invested in the district centres and he was suggested 
that the panel tackle planning policy before strategic transportation. 
 
Councillor Shires stated that the issue of transportation infrastructure needed to be 
addressed before planning policy in order to have a transport framework to plan 
against. 
 



 

  6 

Finally, councillor Shires reminded the panel of an outstanding issue around the 
Leather Heritage conservation area and that he felt the panel should re-constitute the 
working group to finalise its investigation of the issues raised. 
 
Resolved 
 

• That the panel receive, at their next meeting, presentations on; 

o the evaluation of the impact of previous regeneration projects 

o and the new planning system, including the statement of community 
involvement. 

• That the panel re-constitute the Leather Heritage Working Group to finalise its 
review of the issues arising. Councillor Shires as lead member. 

• That the panel form two new working groups; 

o Walsall markets; to input into a strategy for 21st century markets within 
the borough. A report detailing the current position of Walsall markets, 
and suggested ways forward, to be presented to the first meeting of the 
group. Councillor Pitt as lead member. 

o Strategic transportation; to investigate and identify corridors to work and 
to input into a strategy for improving transport provision in the borough. 
Councillor Coughlan as lead member. 

• That the membership of the working groups should be open to all members of 
the panel. 

 
7/06 PERFORMANCE AND MONITORING ITEMS 
 
Members noted the beacon index, outturn 2005/6, copies having been previously 
circulated. 
 
(annexed) 
 
8/06 TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
 
Councillor Robinson had already urged that all members of the development control 
panel attend the telecoms event on 23 November 2006. 
 
Councillor Shires mentioned that, since the telecommunications masts working group 
had reported its findings there had been several examples of mobile phone operators 
flouting the rules. There was a worrying rise in the misuse of six-month emergency 
provision. He felt that the operators needed to be brought to task over this issue and 
the event in November could be a good forum for such a debate with the mobile 
representatives. If the operators consulted properly at the beginning of the year then 
there should be no need to roll-out anything other than what had already been 
agreed. 
 
There being no further business the meeting terminated at 7.45 p.m. 


